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GOURLEY GURLEY 

~l ay it be realized in whate,·er clime, 111 sec in~ clearly our duty t,i 

( ~ud, and to a,·oicl clanger. 

This hook is cleclicatecl as a sotl\'enir to my belo,·cd \Yite, l '~miline A . 
H eydecker, a daughter of the late James ( ;ourley. 









PREFACE. 

In the preparation of this little book, entitled ··Genealogy of San1uel 
Gourley and His Descendants/' I have atten1pted to collect all th(" n1atter 
of general interest, together ,:vith such data as has been obtainable relating 
to said family, from about the year 1784 down to and including the present 
time, giving the facts as ,vere best knovvn to the descendants, ,vhich have 
been retained in this book in the original letters ·written by the relatives, 
and those ,vho ~ne,v the general facts relating to the family. 

To this has been added the names, dates of birth, marriages and 
deaths of all of the descendants, so far as has been able to be traced by­
corre~pondence and intervievv"s. 

The compiler desires to recognize and thank for courtesies extended 
in this research .A.lbert E. Gourley, James Gourley, A.rthur Gourley, C. C. 
Lounsberry, Thon1a:s B. Gourley, l\Iartha Gourley Gehlman, Francis _-\. 
Day, Sa1nuel B. Gourley and Mary B. CraVv-ford. 

In ,vriting a ,vork of even this sn1all character, it required a large 
a111ount of patience and correspondence. ,vhich is an1ply repaid by the 
satisfaction that all have been ready and ,vi11ing to lend a helping hand in 
gathering the:-,;e facts. It is hoped that this little voh1111e \Yill be of intere:--t 
to the fa1nily and a n1ocle of preserving the facts and records therein set 
forth. If this is thereby acco1nplished, it \Yill have ans,vered its purpose. 

C. T. J{EYDECKER. 





r. Sann1el Gourley, b. ----; d. at Picka,Yay Co., Ohio., about 
1820; 111. ----

2. X ancy Sibbet, at Philadelphia; Pa.; d. 186o. aged 89 years, at ::.\1It. 
\-ernon, Io,va. 

Their children are: 

3. \Yillian1: never n1arried ; died about 1870. 

4. Sa111uel Sibbet ( 10). 

Xancy Sibbet; 111. __,..._ ---.. Lawrence: no children. 

6. John ; never 111arriecl; died before he vYa ~ 30. 

7. Ja111es (30). 

8. Joseph ( 105). 

o. Isaac; never 111arriecl : dead. 

Four children died in infancY. 

10. Sann1el Sibbet Gourley. b. ()ct. 13, 1800; cl. Dec. 22, 1838; 111. 
Jan. 14. r 823. 

Ir. Elizabeth Robinson. b .. -\ug. 27. 1805: cl. Sept. 27, 1839. 

Their chilc1rcn are: 

12. Thon1as IL, died in infancy. 

13. X elson R., b. _.\ug. 3 I. 1827: cl. Sept. 20. 1828. 

14. Hannah Pauline ( 28). 

15. Thon1as Burreli. b. )Ia,· 14. 1834. 

I 6. }Iary Elizabeth, b. Dec. 19. l 837 ; cl. Jan. 4. I 838. 

Thon1as B. Gourley. nephe,y of J an1es Gourley, late of Spring­
fielcL Ill.. and son of Sa111uel S. Gourley. 

17. Tho111as n. Gourley. b. 1Iay 14. 1834: lives at Paso Robles. Cal.: 
111. :day 3, 1859. 

18. .Althe·a Lillian HinckleY. 

Their children are: 
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20. 

21. 

22. 

24. 

Clarence \ Yillian1, b. Jan. 28, 1860 . 

. A.lice Luella. b. Xov. 15, 1862. 

i\Iinnie Florence, b. Dec. 29, 1864. 

Jennie Eliza, b. Jan. 31, 1866. 

A.rthur Franklin, b. _-\ug. 8, 1868. 

Charles _-\llen, b. Xov. 4, 1871. · 

A.ddison Phelps, b . ..:-\pril 17, 1873. 

Tho1nas }\clelbert b. ::;ov. 10, 1874. 

X ellie }Iarcia, b. _-\pril 13. 1878. 

Letter of Tho111as B. Gourley, Part II. 

28. Hannah P. Gourley, a daughter of San1uel S. Gouriey; b. Sept. 14, 
1829; cl. ---, 1885; 1n. }iarch I, 1848. 

29. _\brain Haas: both are dead; never had anv children; resided at 
Pekin: Ill. 

J_-\:\IES GOLTRLEY'S F_-\1IIL ·y_ 

( Letter of }Iartha J. Gehln1an, Part II.) 

The fa1nily Bible, 110\\. ,vith ::.\Irs. Francis _-\_ Day, Springfielct Ill., 
contains the f ollo\ving : 

30. Jan1es Gourley, son of San1uel Gourley ancl° Xancy Sibbet, ,vas 
born in \V. estrnoreland Co., Penn., _-\ug. 2", I 808; d. :.\Jarch 26, 
1874. 

3 I. Lucy _-\1111 Poe. daughter of Jacob and Rebecca Poe, \Vas born in 
Chatha111 Co .. Xorth Carolina, June I 1. 1818; d ... April 20, 

1863. 

N OTE.-Tho1nas Poe, a brother of Lucy A .. nn (Poe) Gourley, 111ar­
ried Jane ----, who died. They had children: Elizabeth, ::.\far­
garet and Le1nuel. He then married Rebecca Bond, and they had En1ma; 
Olive. ,vho married ---- Roberts. a 1ninister. at St. Paul. 1Iinn. : 
Frederick; Lemuel, 1narried Lucy .A.nn Payne; their children are James, 
Tho1nas. Le111uel and Lucv and others ,vhose nan1es cannot be learned. 

J a~es Poe, also a brother of l\Irs. James Gourley, married ( name 
of wife cannot be obtained). Their children are: Le1nuel, ,vho ,vas killed 
at battle of Shiloh, Tenn.; Neoma, Cornelius and others whose nan1es 
cannot be obtained. One of the daughters married a ~Ir. Gill. 

l\1r. James Gourley, an old citizen of this city, breathed his last on 
March 26, 1874, about 10 a. m. 

l\1r. Gourley was confined to his room just three ,veeks ,vith pneu­
n1onia. suffering great pain during the greater part of his sickness. 1Ir. 
Gourley was 66 years of age; ,vas ,vell and favorably kno\-vn in this city, 

12 



\\·here he had resided for n1any years. _-\s a business n1an, in his younger 
days. he '.vas energetic, pron1pt and reliable. He filled the office of con­
stable, deputy sheriff and deputy L nited States marshal, to t,1e satisfac­
tion of those having business ,vith hi111. He ,vas for a number of years 
the tvler of a bodv of ~\Iasons. of ,vhich he ,vas a 111e1nber, and in all the 

- .,I • .. 

relations of life he ,vas kno,vn as the possessor of a kindly heart. ever 
ready to serve his friends, and affectionately attached to his large family 
of children and grandchildren. He ,,·as strictly honest in his dealings 
and charitable in his judg1nent of the acts of his fello,v1nen. Peace to his 
ashes and sy111pathy for his children in the loss of a father that was ahvays 
near in affliction and very inclulgent.-Springficld J1onitor. 

31a. Ja111es Gourley, son of Samuel Gourley; b. _-\ug. 2, 1808, at \Vest-
111oreland Co., Penn.; cl. :'..\larch 26, 1874, and buried at Spring­
field, Ill.; 111. Feb. 27, 1837. 

31b. Lucy _-\nn Poe. of Chathan1 Co .. Xorth Carolina; b. June II, 1818; 
cl. _-\pril 20, 1?63, and buried at Springfield, Ill. 

Children: 

3 IC. ::.\Iartha Jane (41). 

32. \\7illia111 Henry Harrison ( 50). 

33. Charles Sib bet ( 56). 

34. Francis _-\1111 ( 62). 

35. _-\lbert Franklin ( 76). 

36. ::.\Iary Louise ( 85). 

37. Caroline _-\lice ( 87). · 

38. J a111es Thomas ( 93) . 

39. _\cla En1111a Dora ( I oo). 

40. ::.\Iayble Clark ( 107). 

41. }Iartha Jane Gourley. daughter of J a111es Gourley; b. X ov. 29, 
1837; resides at Springfield, Ill.;· 111. Sept. 24, 1866. 

42. Ernest F. Gehhnan. b. _-\pril 28. 1827: cl. ::.\lay 25, 1898; buried at 
Springfield, Ill. 

Children: 

43. Frederick. b. Jan. I 5, 1868, at Springfield, Ill. 

44. _-\lice E. ( 48) .. 

45. Francis Taylor, b. Oct. 19, 1871, at Springfield, Ill. 

46. Ernest Gourley, b. Oct. 3 r. 1874, at Springfield, Ill. 

47. Louis \ Valker ( 49). 
13 



48. Alice E. Gehhnan, daughter of 2.\Iartha J. Gourley; b. Xov. 29, 
1869; m. Oct. 26, 1904. 

48a. Eugene E. Bone, b. Jan. 12, 1867. Resides at Springfield, Ill. 

Children: 

48b. Robert Gehhnan, b. June 2, 1906. 

48c. Francis Eugenia, b. ::\1ay 21, 1908. 

N OTE.-Eugene E. Bone was Grand Chancellor Con1111ander of the 
Order of Knights of Pythias of the State of Illinois for the year 1908-1909. 

49. Louis Walker Gehhnan. son of ::\Iartha J. Gourlev: b. l\Iarch 28, 
18i7; m. June 11, · 1902. " • · · 

49a. Lillian E. \V ood, b. 1Iarch 9, 1881. Resides at Springfield. Ill. 

Children: 

49b. Louis Wood, b. 1Iarch 7, 1904. 

4gc. l\1argarite Lucile. b. Sept. 3, r 905. 

49d. Leonard \iV oocl, b. _.\ug. 28, 1907. 

50. \Villiam Henry I-Iarrison Gourley, son of J a111es Gourley; b. 1Iarch 
25, 1840; deputy naval officer. X e\v York City; 111. Sept. 3, 
1863. 

5 r. Ella Sutherland. b. Dec. 28, 1841. a daughter of Judge James 
Sutherland, Jr., of New· ··York City. 

Child: 

52. Blanche (53). 

53. Blanche Got1r1ey, daughter of \Villia111 Henry Harrison Gourley; 
b. June r6. r868: resides at Detroit, }Iich.: 111. ----, 1891. 

54. John F. Richartz. 

Child: 

.35. Ruth Dorothy. b. _-\pril 18, 1892; d. ---­

Divorced; second 111arriage ( 19ot 

.35a. Franklin Trapp. 

Says the August 19 issue of the Republican _y C'"i.('S_. a journal pub­
lished in New York Citv: 

~ 

··There is no officer connected vvith the customs service ,vho has a 
better knowledge of the la,vs and require1nents of that service than Harri­
son VV. Gourley, special deputy naval officer. He is one of the authori­
ties on the complex questions constantly arising. ~'Ir. Gourley has passed 
through nearly every grade of naval office ,vork, thus eminently fitting 
him for the responsible position he no,Y occupies. 
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··~Ir. Gourley \Yas born in Springfield, Ill., and studied lavv there. 
He \Yas originally appointed to the naval office as a personal appointment 
of _A.brahan1 Lincoln in 1861, and is now a special deputy n2.val officer. 
_-\ courteous, kindly gentlen1an in personal ·and business life, but strictly 
business ,,·here business is involved." 

56 .. 

57. 

58. 

59. 

60. 

6r. 

Charles Sib bet Gourley, son of J an1es Gourley; b. Dec. 3. 1842; 
cl. _-\ug. 22, 1884; buried at Junction, Oregon; 111. ----

i\,lar\- Stevvart. b. ----; cl .. A.ug. 6, 1883; buried at Portland, 
~ Oregon. · 

Children: 

.. Ada. 

l\Ijnnie l\L 

George. 

J a111es. 

X o trace can be ob.tainecl of this branch of the family. 

62. Francis A.nn Gourley, daqghter of James Gourley; b. Feb. 14, 
1844: resides at Springfield, Ill. ; 111. }.\!larch 1, 1864. 

63. X a than Gilln1an. 

Children: . 

6-4. Charles Harrison ( 67). 
-

65. A.lbert Franklin (71). 

Divorced; second marriage Jan. 7, 1897 . 

. 66. Horatio .A .. :pay, b. K ov. 25, 18-; resides at Springfield, Ill. 

X o children. 

07. Charles Harrison Gilhnan, son of Francis .Ann Gourley; b. Oct. 23, 
1864; d. _April 6, 1903; buried at F;-eelove, Pa.; 111. :\Iay 23, 
1897. 

68. :\I yrtle A .. Braden, b. ----; resides at Parkersburg, \V. \~ a. 

Children: 

69. \Villian1 Gourley, b. Sept. z5, 1899. 

70. ~Jarv Francis, b. :\larch 18, 1901. 

7r. .A..lbert Franklin Gilhnan, son of Francis A .. Gourley; b. Kov. 13, 
1867; 111. ----

72. Celia T. Cantrall, b. Dec. 18, 1871. 

Children: 

73. 1-larrv .A. ( 75a). 



74. l\Iaybel L. ( 75c). 

75. Blanche C., b. J nly 2, 1892. 

75a. Harry A ... Gillman, daughter of . ..\lbert Franklin Gillman; b. June 
18, 1887; 111. ----, 1908. 

75b. ---

75c. 1Iayble L. Gilhnan. daughter of _..\lbert Franklin Gillman: b. _-\pril 
25, 1890; m. ----

75d. ----

76. _:\lbert Franklin Gourley, son of Ja111es Gourley: b. Oct. 29. 184u: 
resides at Springfield. Ill. : 111. :\iay 3 I, 187 r. 

77. Jennett Craig, b. July 11, 1848. 

Children: 

78. Roy J. ( 8 r ) . 

79. \ 1incent C., b. Sept. 16, 1884. 

80. Louis Hill, b. Oct. 17, 1889. 

Sr. Roy J. Gourley. son of .-\lbert Franklin Gourley: b. Feb. 6, 187-4; 
resides at Springfield, Ill. : 111. June 1 o, 1896. 

82. ).lary Ethel Beroley, b. Dec. 21, 1876. 

Children: 

83. Ethel Fern, b. Dec. 17, 1897. 

84. Roy Clifford, b. Feb. 17, 1902. 

85. ~Iary Louisa Gourley. daughter of Jan1es Go}trley; b. Feb. 14 .. 
1849; d. Sept. 17, 1875 ~ buried at Barry. 111.; m. June 12. 1873. 

86. E. J. H urf b. ----; resides at Barry, Ill. 

Child: 

Babv. died ,vhen a fe,v claYs old . 
.,; , ~ 

87. Caroline _-\lice Gourley. daughter of J an1es Gourley; b. Jan. 25. 
-185 I: resides at \Vaukegan. Ill.: 111. _-'..pril 18. 1875. 

88. Christian T o,,·nsencl H eycleckec b. Sept. 4. 1846: resides at \\.au­

kegan. Ill. 

Children: 

89. Coral T., b. Feb. 21, 1880. 

90. Nina Louisa, b. Dec. 12. 1883; <l. Oct. 23, 1884. 

9r. Bessie Irene, b. :\larch 16, 1886. 

92. ..\lice En1n1a, b. June 2, 1888. 
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C. T. Heydecker is a descendant of Henry To,vnsend, of the Town­
send brothers, ,vho "~ere driven fron1 Boston, }lass., as Quakers, and, 
\vith others, 1nade the settlement at Oyster Bay, Long Island, N. Y., and 
\Ve here produce the fa111ily coat of arn1s of the To,vnsend and Heydecker 
ancestors: 

C. ·r. Heydecker ,vas state's attorney for his county, being elected 
three times, and held many positions of honor in the fraternal societies 
of which he is a n1en1ber. 

93. James Thon1as Gourley, son of James Gourley; b. Jan. 18, 1853; 
resides at Springfield, Ill.; 1n. Dec. 5, 1878. · 

94. A.nna 1L Rubly; b. ::.\larch 18, 1858. 
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Children: 

95. Harrison C., b. June 8, 1879: cl. .c-\ug. 22, 1879. 

6 L . ( ' 9 . ot11se '-99a). 

97. George \\ .. oocL b. Sept. 23, 1883. 

98. J an1es Tho111as, b. Jan. 23, 1891. 

99. Samuel Rubly, b. June 25, 1898. 

99a. Louise Gourley, daughter of Ja111es T. Gourley; b. Sept. 26, 1881: 
111. Sept. 2, 1903. 

99b. }Iillard Lobdell, b. July 9, 1879; resides at Springfield, Ill. 

Children: 

99c. _-\nna Loujse, b. A.ug. 25. 1905. 

99d. Charles J ero111e, b. Jan. 27, I 908. 

100. A:da En1111a Dora Gourley. daughter of J a111es Gourley; b. Feb. 27, 
1855.; resides at vVaukegan, Ill.; 111. Dec. 24, 1874. 

IOI. George S. Gehiman, b ... April· 21, 1853; cl. Feb. 1, 1905; buried at 
\Yaukegan, Ill. 

Children: 

102. Lynn Severs, b. Sept. 14, 1875 : cl. Oct. 6, 1876. 

103. _\lbert Jan1es ( 105). 

104. Georgianna, b. Sept. 18, 1 ~79, at Denver, Colo. 

105. A.lbert J an1es Gehhnan, son of .c\cla En1n1a Dora Gourley·; b. Dec. 
6. 1876; resides at Chicago. Ill.; 111. July 6, 1908. 

106. -~nna Ring, b. Xov. 6, 1881. 

107. ~Layble Clark Gourley. daughter of J an1es Gourley; b. X ov. 28, 
1857: cl. 1Iarch 5. 1887: buried at Springfield. Ill.: 111. Xov. 
39. 1880. 

108. \Yilbur \\ ... Jilson, b. ----

Children: 

109. Louis \·., b. Jan. 4, 1882. 

110. Ella \""iola (111). 

111. Eila \~. Jilson. daugnter of :\Iayble Clark Gourley; }-l. Dec. 26, 
1883: 111. June 28, 1905. 

112. Roy J. }Iason, b. June 2'3, 1878; resides in Chicago, Ill. 

Child: 

I 13. Kenneth \Yilbur: b. July I, 1906. 
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The following letters contain 111.uch of the fa111ih· histor,· obtainable, 
relating to the branches of the Gourley fa1nilv in the ·cnited ·states: . ., 

AlLert E. Gnrle:v. of \Villimantic. Conn .. has recently published '"The History 
.an~ Genealogy of the Gurley Family:· from which we extract the follo·wing as 
lJemg of interest to this branch of the familv: 

•'The Gurley motto is 'Profnnda Cernit;--:May it be realized in ,vhatever clime, 
in _seeing clearly our duty to Goel. and to avoid clanger. 

"Part First contains a very interesting account of our lirst ancestor of which 
the anthor of this histo:-y has been ahle to find any record of. He is Ingelram de 
Gurley. \\·ho accompan1etl \Villiam the Lion from Xormantly. France, to Scotland 
in the year 1174. and for his sage counsels and good advice King William gave him 
a tract of land in Kincraig, in Fifeshire, which, I believe, is possessed by the name 
to this day." 

X OTE.-\Vebster's International Dictionary. 1902. page 2077, says. under date 
of 1174. ··\Villia1n the Lion. King of Scotland, is taken prisoner by· the English; 
he acknowledged the suzerainty of Henry II.''-C. T. H. 

'I, 

T n speaking of their religious convictions, he says: 
"I find one \vho defied ( in Scotland) the power of the Pope of Rome-that 

he had any power over the soul-but for this and the pamphlets he had secretly 
printed and circulated he had to flee Scotland, and went to England. but the king 
being a Catholic, he soon had to le~,·e England. and went to Canada. where he 
ren1ained for three years, and then returned to England,- where he thrashed a man 
-one day in Parliament for his abusive language to him: and for this thrashing he 
ga\·c this member of Parliament he ,vas put in prison. But, nevertheless, he always 
denied the power of the Pope of Rome to save or condemn the soul of man. This is 
the only account of any Gurley that I find that was ever arrested on the other side 
of the Atlantic ocean, and onh· one in the United States. and that an· old soldier 
who ,vas arrested for imbibing too much whisky and placed -in the lockup over 
night and fined the next morning. 

"I find that no Gurl~y in the United States at the present time that is either 
engaged in the manufacture or the sale of any intoxicating drink of any kind. and 
but very fe,v that use it in any form. 

"And for one. I am proud of the name of Gurley. and belie,·e all should be. 
I hm·e made special inquiry in relation to temperance. character and religious quali­
lications relati ,·e to our name, and the same applies to the name Gourley and 
Gourlay.'' 

In a letter to 1Ir. C. C. Lounsberry, 1:Iarshalltown, Iowa. he says: I have 
copied off a few extracts ,vhich may be interesting to you, and I have a fe,v 
more of a similar character. Just how far you design to carry your work I do 
not as yet fully understand. If you simply wish to trace back the line of Goureys 
to ,vhich your n1other is connected, or a general work for printing. Ho,vever. th3.t 
1nay be, you have started right for either-to get all the ·information you can and 
then look across the water for the balance. 

It looks to me now from ,vhat you state to me in your letters. that if you 
design to carry your undertaking to a complete success that after you had obtained 
all the information you could on this side that some one would have to cross to 
the other side and search the records there. The records in Edinburgh. Scotland, 
are kept in the best of style and presume they are about the same in Ireland. 

After the Gourlays first settled in Kincraig. Fifeshire, there was one who 
-crossed over and settled in the north part of Ireland, and afterwards I learn others 
went to Ireland, but the larger part of the Gourlay people remained in Scotland 
where there are quite a number of then1 at the present time. A. few went to 
England. Also there is a branch which came to this country about 1675 and settled 
South, and if you look in the P. 0. directory, you will find several P. 0. by the 
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name of Gurlay. Gurley, ~Iadison Co .. Alabama: Gurley, ~Iarion Co., Ohio: Gurley. 
Horry Co., S. C.; Gurley, Falls Co., Texas; Gurley's Creek, Jefferson Co .. Ala., ancl 
Gurley\·ille, Tolland Co., Conn. ( my natiYe town). I have spent some six years. 
of my life in traveling in the U. S. and been on the borders of Canada. and been 
in ::\'lexico t\\·ice, lived twice in your state. -

If you should conclude to want to have the records of Scotland or Ireland 
looked up in relation to the Gourlay history with the intention of getting out a 
book gives the history of those living in Scotland and Irelarrd so as to connect 
,vith those on this side I would be pleased to know about it. I am carrying on 
the work I am no,v engaged in wholly at my own expense, but to visit Scotland and 
Ireland to search the records there I should want my expenses paid mostly by 
others. If you should desire anything of this kind you perhaps might get other~ 
to assist in paying for looking up these records, but I lea\·e the matter· with you. 

Extract from Burke's History of the Commoners. In notice of the family of 
Spens of Lathallan. X athaniel Spens of Lathallan was restored heir to his father 
in 1662. He married a daughter of Sir Thomas Gourlay of Kincraig and had a 
son and successor Thomas Spens of Lathallan who married his cousin ).Iargaret 
Gourlay, grandchild of Sir Thomas Gourlay of Kincraig, and had two sons. 

"Profunda Cernit" is the Gurley motto. ·'1Iay it be realized in whatever clime, 
in seeing clearly our duty to God and to avoid danger." 

Extract from Burke's historv of the Commoners, Vol. 4. In notice of the 
family of Taylor of Pennington~ Col. Philip Van Cortlandt who died i.\1Iay 1st, 
1814 had a numerous family. I-Iis daughter Catharine Van Cortlandt, twin with 
::.\1:rs. Taylor, married Dr. William Gourlay, of Kincraig, Scotland, and of l\Iaderia, 
and had issue. 

-John died ,vithout issue. 
Jane married John Austine. Col. in the British army and Brigadier-General in 

the Portuguese army during the Peninsular war under the Duke of \Vellington. 
They had issue, John, Eliza, Susan, Anna. ~Iaria. 

Other children of Dr. \Villiam Gourlay, of Kincraig, Scotland, were: Eliza; 
Catharine, married 1st Capt. R. Douglas, R. X., by ·whom she had no issue; 
Gertrude. 

Col. Philip Van Cortlandt of America, married Catharine, daughter of Dr. \Vil­
liam Gourlay, of Kincraig, Fifeshire, Scotland, in 1787. 

Sir \Villiam Bickerton, of Suffness, died in the time of King David Bruce. and 
left behind him three daughters; John Gourlay married one of them, and got with 
her the lands of Kincraig in Fife. ( X ew Register.) 

Extract from collections concerning the Scottish History of Sir James Dal­
rymple, Baronet, Edinburg. 1705. Preface pages 78 and 79. Speaking of th<.> 
Register of Xew Bottle. In the year 1293 I see Sir Andrew Frazer. designed 
Vicomes de Stirviling. a \Yitness in a character by \:Villiam Gourlay to this Abbacy~ 
joined with Patrick de Graham, John de Cal1entra and \Villiam de Stirviling. 
Knights. 

THO::\L\S B. GOcRL.-\ Y. 
EL PASO DE RABLES_. C.-\L._. December 16, 1896. 

C. C. LocxsBERRY_. ::\farshallto\\·n, Io\\·a. 
Dear Sir: Your favor of X o\·ember 8th is received. I will cheerfully give you 

all the information I can in regard to the Gourley family. but am sorry to say it will 
be limited. and reaches back to Grandfather Gourley only and was received chiefly 
from Gra-ndma Gourley. :\Iy grandparents on my father's side can1e from Ire­
land. a bout the year 1784. grandn1a came from near Belfast, but if I ever 
knew what part of Ireland grandfather came fron1 I ha\·e forgotten. neither do I 
know if they \Yere acquainted in Ireland. The voyage was made in a sail vessel 
and took six \veeks, during which time they became engaged and were married in 
Philadelphia, at vd1ich place they landed. Grandfather's name ,vas Samuel, Grand­
mother's, X ancy Sibbet. They settled for a number of years in Pennsylvania but 
removed to Ohio-·Pickaway Co.-\vhere he died about the year 1820. He was a 
shoemaker bv trade which he followed for a livelihood. They had eleven chil­
dren. ten so~s and one <laughter. Of these T can remember but seven-\Villiam 
( Samuel Sib bet. my father), X ancy Sib bet, John. James, Joseph and Isaac. Of 
these Samuel, l\ancy, James and Joseph were married. Samuel married Elizabeth 
Robinson, in Ohio. They had fiye children, three girls and two boys. 
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The two eldest and the youngest died young. ::\Iy sister died at Pekin. Ill., 
:=:.omc years ago. was married to Abram Haas. but left no children. This leayes 
me alone of my father's family. ::\Iy parents moved to \Vapello, Louis Co .. Iowa, 
in 1837. He built the first house in that town. He and mother and my youngest 
sister died at that place in 1839. X ancy Lorance left no children. James ( 11rs. 
Gehlman's father), left a large family of which she can better inform vou than I. 
Joseph left four daughters and two sons \Yho li\·e in different parts of this state. 
Three of the girls are married. 

\Villiam. John and Isaac. also Grandma, died on _the homestead in Singen 
Grove. Linn Co., Iowa. Bertram. Grandma. died in 1860. the sons se,·eral vears 
previously. I came to this state in 1859. Cncle Joe and Aunt X ancy can;e to 
California in 1864 and died some twel \·e years ago. I was 111arried in ~Iarion, 
Linn Co .. Iowa. in 1859, to :Miss .\ltea L. Hinkley and started to this state in a 
fe,Y clays and have since resided here. \Ve hm·e five sons and four daughters, all 
grown. One son and two daughters married, all living in this state. Have heard 
-of Gourleys in two different localities in this state but ha,·e not seen any of them. 

\Yith regards, I am, Yours truly, 
T. B. Go-cRLEY, 

2926 Lorena St., BERKELEY_. C_-\L., Oct. 2, 1904. 

:\IR. C. T. HEYDECKER, \Vaukegan, Ill. 

Dear Sir: 

Several months since you wrote me for information of Uncle Joseph Gourley's 
family. I was not at that time possessed of the desired information and did not 
succeed in obtaining it by \vriting. . 

Later I paid a visit to Guerenville, Sonoma Co., Cal., and send you the family 
11istorv as I was able to collect it. 

Joseph Gourley was born in Pennsyh-ania, August 12th, 1812. :Mary Jane 
Galhraith, his wife. born in Ohio. Sept. 10th, 1828. They were n1arried in Illi: 
nois. ~Iay 3rd, 1840? 1Ioved to Linn Co .. Iowa, soon after. Can1e to California 
-0\·erland in 1864 and settled near Guerenville. Joseph Gourley died at same place, 
August 31st, 1873. :Mary Jane. his wife, died at same· place, January 9th, 1880. 
Their family consisted of five daughters and two sons. all at present living in this 
state. excepting the eldest, Alice, ,vho died in Iowa, October 10th, 1846. 

RECORD OF BIRTHS. 

Alice was born April 3rd. 1842: Lida Ann Gourley \Yas born August 15th, 
1844: · Sarah _-\lice was horn ~I arch 6th. 1847: Samuel Sibbet wa~ born 1Iarch 
6th. 1849: Ina Jane was born January 13th, 1855: Thomas Burrell was horn January 
:23rd. 1858: l\Iinnie Ida was born January 20th. 1861. They were all born in Linn 
Co .. 1owa.<lt 

Lida Ann_ Gourley and Oliver \Vescott were married near Guerneville, ?day 
~n<l. 1866. They had four sons and one daughter. Two sons. George and Frederick 
arc dead. Two. Frank and Benjamine are liYing and unmarried. The dci.ughter, 
~lary. married James Banks and has three sons and two daughters, all living. 

Sarah Alice Gourley and Charles B. Foster were married :\lay 1st. 1867. Foster 
·was drov,:ned February 8th. 1878. They had three sons and two daughters. Tvv-o 
sons are dead, both daughters living and married. 

Sarah Foster married a fe\v vears after Foster's death to Abraham Sterritt. 
in San Joaquin Co .. Cal. Live at present near Reedley, Fresno Co., Cal. The~~ 
had three sons and two <laughters: One son and one daughter are dead. Cannot 
give names of children. nor elates of births or deaths. 

::\-Iinnie Tda Gourle,· and Fredrick Ellison were married near Guerneville. Au­
gust lith. 1881. Ellison died in sanitarium 2.t San Francisco. }larch 12th, 1899. 
Seven daughters were horn to them. including one pair of twins. Born in follow­
ing order: Georgie. Bessie. Grace t\\·in. Lida, 1 na and Geraldine. The eldest 
daughter married a :\Ir. Dillon. XoYember 14th, 1901. Died August 31st, 1903, at 
Cazadero, Sonoma Co., Cal. 
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.-\111 sorrv I could not send the information sooner and fear it \Yill be too 
late to l)e of ·service to you. Have had poor health for several years. If anything 
additional is needed will be pleased to do all I can to supply it. 

Hoping this ,\·ill find you and yours in good health and prosperity l am, with 
regards, Yours very truly, 

T. B. GoL·Rr.EY. 

J .-\:\IES GOURLEY. 

195 vValnut St., SPIUXGFIELD, ILL.. Oct. 31. 1895. 
lvIR. C. C. LocxsEERRY_. 

~Ty Dear Friend: Yours of October 12th was brought to me by one of my 
brothers1 thinking as I ,vas the eldest of our family 1 would know more about 
what you wish than either of them. I was the eldest of ten children. I recall verv 
little hut have often thought since my father died I ·wish I had ·had hin1 writ~ 
down for- us his early life. I know he was one of the younger sons of his parents 
and know they had ten sons and one daughter. Xancy. the eldest. :\Iy father's 
parents lived in v\r estmoreland County. Pa .. emigrated to Ohio, near Circleville. and 
entered land there-my grandfather did. Samuel married there. The famil~ then 
moved to Linn Co .. Iowa. near 1ft. Vernon. 

The son Samuel moved to Peoria, Ill. :\I y father came to this state ,vith a 
brother-in-law of his brother. Samuel, and stayed on a farn1 with them for a good 
,vhile near Decatur. He had previously learned ·the shoemaker's trade from his 
brother Samuel. He walked from Decatur here, put up at the largest hotel then 
here and obtained work. made friends and alwa\·s lived here. and to the time of his 
death used to say he had as boy and man been in· many places but always said Spring­
field was the place for him. ~1:r. Lincoln was onr next neighbor for many years. "Then 
he was elected. :\1y father congratulated him. He said, "Jim yon have not asked me 
for anything but I cannot forget the many kindnesses my family have had at your 
family's hands. \Vhat would you like?" He replied. "nothing for me but if yon 
would give Harrison (my eldest brother) a lift. I'd be glad." Soon after he left. 
my brother was sent for from the ~Iarine office in Xew York to report for duty. 
He entered there and has been promoted from place to place until now for about 
twenty years he has been chief clerk. ( Ko,v Deputy X a val, Officer in New York 
City.) The next brother, Charles Sibbet Gourley, learned the jeweler's trade and 
went to Portland. Oregon, married a ::\Iiss :\-Iary Stewart. They both are dead. 
Left two girls and two boys. The next girl Frances. was married- to Nathan Gill­
man, is a widow with two boys. The next was Louise who married Elisha Hurt. 
She died in Barry, Ill. Albert F. Gourley and James. jewelers. both married in 
Springfield. Albert has three boys. J arnes three boys and one girl. Caroline mar­
ried C. T. Heyclecker. of \Vankegan. Ill., has three children-one boy and two girls. 
~Iabel married \V. Jilson. is dead. left hvo children. boy Louis. daughter Ella. I 
have five children, four boys and one girl. * * * I do not think my father .eYer 
saw his grandparents. From the family Bibl-::: I find this-James Gourley, son of 
Samuel and X ancy Sibbet Gourley. born Aug. 2nd. 1808. in \Vestmoreland Co .. 
Pa. So you see his father's name was Samuel and his mother's name X ancy. Sibbet 
being her maiden name. During the war a cousin of my father who was called to 
the bedside of a son who was sick at Camp Butler visited us. He and my father 
talked of their families. He had prepared a tree of the 1IcCann's his father's 
family and \,·as then looking up his mother's family. Sibbett said he \vould send 
my father a copy when done. He did so bnt "·e only kept it a fevv days and my 
father instead as I "·ished him to do. rr1akc a copy, could not wait he was so 
anxious his mother, sister and Uncle William ancl his brother Samuel's son who 
lived there should see it and send it back. They said they never got it-and that 1 
suppose ,vas lost. I wrote to Cousin :\IcCann ancl instead of sending -me another 
copy of the Sibbett family he sent that of the 1'1cCann, which only touches the 
Gourleys where his father married my grandmother's sister. The Uncle Samuel 
I spoke of moved fro111 Peoria to vVisconsin. He and his wife died soon after 
each other and my father at the request of his brother expected to take charge of 
the son Thomas~ and the wife's sister \Vanted the girl Hannah. Father went in a 
wagon from Springfield to vVisconsin, came home by Linn Co., Iowa. to see his 
mother, sister and brothers. Grandmother ancl Aunt X ancy would not hear of 
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father·s bringing him away from them. The sister Hannah came to us for a ns1t. 
then went to her aunt, ~Irs. San1nel .-\llen in Pekin. Thomas seYeral times Yisited 
her and us. Hannah married ::\Ir. .-\bram Haas. died several years ago. had always 
lived in Pekin. She visited grandmother and .--\ .. unt Xancy in Linn Co .. lo\,·a, and 
talked about the family and knew more thari I. She often said .-\unt X aricy said 
all of the Gourleys came from the same .. stock/' and though none had made much 
noise in the ,vorld. all were respectable and had as clean a record as any family 
living. Thomas who grev.- up with Uncle \Villiam, Grandmother and Aunt Xancy, 
I feel sure can tell you a good deal that I perhaps ne,·er knew. and he is such a 
ready writer, and ·will make any statement he has to tell so plain. * * · * Grand­
mother died at the age of 89 about the year 1857. and Thomas married and ,vent 
to California. In a short time Uncle \Villiam died and .-\unt X ancy went with my 
Uncle Joseph's family to where Thomas was living, I think. Just after her 
mother's death she married ·a man by the name of Larence. I ain under the in1-
pression he did not liYe long. * * * Uncle Joe and wife died many years ago. 
Their daughter lived with Aunt Xancy. I never saw Aunt nor Grandmother. There 
I have written all this and not told you that I haYe heard our grandparents ,vere 
born in Scotland of Irish parents and came to Pa. from Ireland. * * * ::\Iy 
cousin. Hannah's husband. used to call her Irish. She would remark. ··I am Scotch­
Irish protestant, and I glory in that I am." She was very bright and could always 
hold her own, a fluent talker and very ectrnest in her convictions. no half way 
about her. I can hear her say, '·I am what I am-no halfway for a Gourley.'' 
Thomas, her brother, is a good talker and writer. I hope he will remember enough 
he has heard of grandmother. Aunt ~ancy and Uncle William talk to have some­
thing to tell you. The brother, Harrison W. Gourley, in New York. married into 
one of the families in the state-the Suther lands. Sister Ella tells H. he has no 
great grandfather. He ctlways says he means to found his own family. 

I am with much interest. Yonrs sincereh·. 
:\IARTH.>\ GocRLEY GEHL::\rAx. 

C. C. LOUXSBERRY. 

::\L\RSHALLTowx, Io,Y.\, Xo,·. 9th, 1895. 
::\IRs. ::\L'\RTHA GocRLEY GEHL\IAX, 

Springfield: Ill. . 
).{y Dear Friend: I \Yas greatly pleased to get your kind letter oi 0<::t. 31st, and 

I thank you most cordially for same. . 
::\1y great grandfather was Samuel Gourley. It is handed down that he was. 

born at "").[ ull of Glass, Scotland/' but afterwards moved to Banbridge. County 
DO\vn. I re land. and there married my great grandmother whose maiden name was 
~Jargaret Dunn. They had seven children. to-,,·it, Thomas .. -\nn. ::\Iary, Elizabeth, 
John. Samuel and \Villiam. started for .-\merica. which cost in those clavs fifh· 
guineas each.· that is $250 each. but a plague of scurvy and smallpox br~ke ot;t 
on the closely crowded ship and fiye out of the nine hundred on the ship board 
<lied and were buried at ocean and among them great grandfather's two sons, Samuel 
and \Villiam. They were eleven weeks crossing the ocean. Those left. settled 
near Zanesville. Ohio. ::\Iy grandfather James Gourley ,vas horn after they came 
to this country. They came in 1801. Thomas Gourley married three times and 
had a large family of children but most of them arc now dead. ?\lost of those 
liYing are now in Ohio. Ann married a ~Ir. vValker. Elizabeth married a ::\.fr. 
Xixon. :\htry married a James Gibson, and there are a number of their children 
at ~It. Vernon. our state. among them John Gibson. John had hut one son and 
we have not heard from him for many years. Grandfather had the following· 
children. Sarah .--\.gnes (mother) .. .\nna Rebecka, James . .\rtemns. Thomas Vv ood­
ruff. Edwin Rufus. and Samuel Birch Gourley. ..\unt Anna and "\Vood" live 
in Denver. Colo. Uncle Jim is now liYing at Shenandoah. Iowa, and the others at 
Denyer. I shall \Yritc to your cousin Thomas G. to see if he can go farther back. 

::\L-\RSHALLTowx •. IowA, Feb. 9th. 1896. 
~IRs. }L\RTHA GEHL1us. . 

I quote the following from the letter of J arnes Gourley, Detroit :2\1ich.: ··\Vhile 
I clon·t knm,· much ahout our imn1ecliate ancestors. 1 know that the progenitor of 
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the Gourley family in Scotland came from Xormandy in the year 1174 along with 
\Villiam the Lion. King of Scotland ( who was brother to :\Ialcolm the 4th. and 
grandson of David the 1st), ,vith other Korman barons. vVilliam ascended the 
thro,vn in 1165, and reigned until 1214. Previous to 1174, while engaged in ·war 
with England he went there under a flag of truce and was treacherously captured 
and sent to X ormandy a prisoner and had to remain there two or three years until 
released. as I said in 1174 when he returned to Scotland with a number of barons, 
among the number Ingleram de Gourley, the progenitors of the Gourleys of Great 
Britain. As the family increased they spread over the shires of Scotland, and 
Ireland, and later from there to America:1

' 

lviv mother does not resemble the Gourlevs as much as she does her mother's 
family; the ::.\1ayhews. I was going to send you one of grandfather's photographs 
but have not succeeded in getting one yet. Grandfather had blue eyes, and ''bay'' 
hair as he used to call it-that is, a light brown, but my mother says that quite a 
number of his brothers had very black curly hair. and blue eyes such as you 
speak of, and one of mother's brothers. Samuel Birch Gourley has the same com­
bination, except his hair is not curly. I will send you a cut of him in a few days. 
Grandfather Gourley was about five feet ten tall, and when I first knew him very 
fleshy and muscular. 

l\L<\.RSHALLTO\VN_. IowA_. April 5th, 1896. 

l\ly Dear l\Irs. Gehlman : Your kind letter of l\:Iarch 25th was duly received and 
-contents carefully noted, and I thank you for same. In the same mail with your 
letter came a letter from. Albert E. Gurley of \,Villimantic. Conn., who is about 
to publish a genealogy of the Gurley family. Following is a copy of his letter: 

\VILLLMAXTIC_. Coxx., }Iarch 23rd, 1896. 

~IR. C. C. LOL"NSBERRY_. 

?vI arshallto,vn. Iowa. 
Yours of ~larch 3rd, 1896. is before me, and contents noted and placed your 

nan1e on list of subscribers. :\ly ·work will get into print some time between Xov. 
1st, 1896 and Jan. 1st, 1897. I commence my final summing up about July 1st, next 
and am in hopes to get my ·work ready for print by Oct. 1st, if possible. 

:My ,vork will give the history of the Gourleys which in 1066 was Thomas de 
Gourlay, but is now spelt Gourley, Gourlay, Gurley, and Girly. This last Girly 
does not appear in this country. Your mother's first ancestor ( the same as my 
.ancestor), was Thomas de Gourlay. He accompanied vVilliam the Conqueror when 
he went from Normandy, France into England. and afterwards one settled in 
Ireland, and today we are represented in England. Scotland, Ireland and America 
as my history and records will describe more fully ·when I get them into print. 

I enclose a sample of my family record and photograph, as it will appear in the 
book when printed. The photograph adds much to make a family record com-
plete. Sincerely . 

. -\. E. GoeRLEY. 

You speak about the names of your father's family and your own. You ga\·c 
n1e the names of your father's family but not of your own. 1 ha,·e written to ~Ir. 
A .. E. Gourley offering to aid him all I can and I have sent him copies of your 
first letter and that of your cousin, Thomas Gourley. and copies of some other 
letters. I think it would be ,vell for you to get together as much as posisble a full 
family record of your line. including dates of births, marriage and death as to 
all of your line as much as you can and let me know if I can be of any aid by 
corresponding with members of your family living at a distance. for these dates. 

We certainly think all the Gourleys are related and it would seem that they 
need not go back more than seven or eight hundred years at furtherest for any 
one family to find a common ancestor with all the others. I thank you for enclos­
ing card of Jno. R. Gourley, of Terre Haute, Ind .. and have taken the address and 
shall write him and herewith return you the card. as your brother may wish to 
keep it, or you may. I beg to thank you most s_incerely for your very kind invita.,.. 
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tion to come and sec you. and may some day take adyantage ot 1t. but my regular 
employment keeps me here all the time and I don't seem to be able to get away 
from town. :\Iother desires me to say she read your letter and sends her regards. 

Sincerely yours, 
C. C. LocxsBERRY. 

J.-\.S. GOURLAY. _-\_ L. GOURL.:\ Y. 

SHIRT JIAKERS :\XD L.\IPORTERS OF ~IE:~·s FURXISHIXG .GOODS. 

99 W ood\vard _-\ venue. 

DETROIT, }IrcH., Xo,·. 13th, 1895. 
1-IR. C. C. LouNSBERRY., 

Dear Sir: Yours of the 12th October was .;ec.eived and I am sorry to say that 
I am situated much in the same way as yourself ,vith respect to my forefathers, 
}Iy mother was father's second wife. He died when I was only ten years old:­
so that I never knew much about his relatives. l\Iy father's name was Robert~ 
His first wife's name was Cameron. There was three children by the first wife,. 
William (famous Scotch comedian), Thomas, and Sarah. Thomas died in Brook­
lyn, the other two in Scotland. The second family consisted of eight : Robert. John,. 
:Margaret, David, George, Lily:, James and Alfred-all, including the first family, 
born in Edinburgh, Scotland. Robert and John. as well as father died in the old 
country.· 11y mother whose maiden nan1e ,vas La~vson and the rest of the family 
came to Xew York in 1856 and lived there till 1870 when I came here '-vith mv 
,vife, whose maiden name was Jean Fair Craig. The other members of the famil}· 
came here within three or four years after, except my sister Lily who died in 
New York and was buried in Greenwood. Her husband's name was vV elwood 
l\1urray. He went to California. 

While I do not know much about our immediate ancestors. I do know that the­
progenitor of the Gourlay family in Scotland came from ~ ormandie in the year 
117 4, with William the Lion, King of Scotland (who was brother to l\Ialcolm the 
4th and grandson of David the 1st), along with other Norman barons. vVilliam 
ascended the throne in 1165; reigned till 1214. PreYious to 1174 while engaged in 
war with England he went there under a flag of truce and was treacherously 
captured and sent to ~ ormandie a prisoner and had to remain there hvo or three 
years till released, as I said in 1174 when he returned to Scotland, accompanied by 
a number of batons. Among them Ingleram de Gourlay, the progenitor of the 
Gourlays of Great Britain. As the family incre~sed they spread over the shires of 
Scotland. England and Ireland, and later fron1 there to An1erica. 

In 1787 Col. Philip Van Cortlandt, of .America, married Catharine, daughter 
of William Gourlay, of Kincaird, Fifeshire, who was one of the family ,vhose 
line is distinctly traced back to the original member by deeds and conveyances in 
the records of Fife and is the line to which I belie,·e our family belongs, because 
while we were born in Edinburgh my father and mother were both born in Fife­
shire-mother being related to the Gourlay family before her marriage to father. 
There was only one of the name here when I came to Detroit. in 1870. X ow there· 
are several families. There are Gourlays in Albany, Troy, Xew York, Brooklyn, 
St. Paul and in Canada, but as you say they are not numerous and I am very 
much inclined to be clannish and am very much interested, and I am going to send 
for a book which I understand is being published gfring an account of the old 
Scotch families includ.ing the house of Gourlay. 

The name is spelled in various ,vays as De Gourlay, De Gourle. De Gurla,. 
Gourlay, Gourlag, Gnrlie, Gurli, etc., but they are all the same family. The upper­
half of our trade mark is the family coat of arms. A.111 sorry that I cannot give 
you more of the information which you desire bnt such as I ha,·e, I gladly give 
you. With respect, I am, Sincerely yours. 

JA).I£s Go-cRLAY. 

11:y brother George is a great enthusiast. He \vants to know what you think 
of getting up a family reunion or something of that sort. 
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ARTHUR GOURLEY. 

CHICAGO, Oct. 14, 1895. 
C. C. LOUNSBERRY, EsQ._. ~Iarshalltow·n, Iowa. 

Dear Sir: Yours of the 12th to hand and I am glad to answer your questions 
as far as I can. I ,vas born in Ireland. Tyrone County, and worked on a farm 
near a little town called Cooksto,vn. Ireland, was married there and came to Chi­
cago direct in -1871. l\Iy ,vife's maiden name was lvicKinney. Was married in 
Irdand, my father's family and wife's family being neighbors. '-We have only 
one child living, she is married to l\1r. J. L. Campbell, secretary of the above com­
pany. I have three brothers living. One in Oregon, one in Chicago. and one still 
on the old homestead in Ireland. l\Iy father's name was Arthur and he had two 
brothers. One of the1n was named George and I cannot remember much about him. 
The other's name was Adam and he came- to Philadelphia about 40 years ago, 
had a large family but have only seen two of them since I came here. My grand­
father"s name was Arthur. He had a brother that came to the states a long time 
ago and left quite a legacy to the heirs. My father was born in 1796. My mother's 
name was :McKinney. l\1y wife's name and mother's is the same name but no 
relation.- l\Iy m0ther·s name was Eliza. She is dead 35 years---died at the age of 
56. lviy father was 8'4 when he· died. lt is hard for 1ne to tell the ages of great 
grandfather and grandfather. J\1y age. is 53. When I came to Chicago I started 
to work in a lumber yard and worked my way up through all the departments 
except bookkeeper, of the largest yard in Chicago-. S. K. 1Iartin Lumber Co. I 
was with this firm 19 years. was the manager for ,same nearly 15 years, was a 
partner and vice-president five. years. We ha,·e been in business under this name 
5 years. vVe sell over 35 millions per year and our business is still growing_ 

Now if there are any other questions about the family would be pleased to 
answer them. As far I can -remember this generation are all Presbyterians and 
was the same for four or five generations before this. There was also a familv 
hy the name of William Gourley and one by the name of Jno. Gourley that lived 
in Cookstown. Ireland. but I have lost track of them. 

Respectfully, 
ARTHUR GOURLEY. 

XoTE.-Two nephe\\"s of Arthur Gourley, the writer of above letter. named 
John and Thomas, reside at vVaukegan. Ill., and are engaged in the lumber business. 

THOl\1AS GOURLEY. 

:\[rs. Lillian Gray Howard. of Chariton, Iowa. furnishes the following informa-
tion relating to one of the Thomas Gourley families. • 

:\IR. C. T. HEYDECKER. 
Dear Sir: ln reply to yours of the 31st ultimo. will say my knowledge of the 

Gourley family is very limited: hut most gladly will assist you that much. 
l do not know if yon desire the family carried down as far as T have in the 

enclosed sheet. hut \"OU can do as \"Oll wish. 
In all cases o( marriages I ,;m not acquainted \vith names. but can find out 

some of them: also children's names. Yiz.: Reuben Guy's children: John T. Sutphin':­
\\·ife: vVilliam Gourley's family. Also Perry and T. Pressley Gaither's families. 

I wrote to Chester. S. C .. a few years ago, and learned of James Gourley. 
Olive. York Co .. S. C. l \\Tote but recei,·cd no answer. 

Also in tracing the v\i ylies ( my maternal grandmother being a \Vylie), I wrote 
the Re\·. David G. \Vylie. and learned that his maternal grandmother was a Gour­
ley: hence his middle name is Gourley. His address was. 161 \Vest 93rd Street. 
~ew York. 

\Vith sincere \\·ishes for your~ success 111 this. T am. 
Yours very truly. 

LILLI AK GRA y How ARD. 

The :i[r. Gourley !1rst mentioned li\·ed in Xorth Carolina. hut removed to 
South Carolina. His sons then went to Indiana. Thon1as. who had married in 
South Carolina ( my grand£ ather). moved to :\Ion roe Co .. near Bloomington; and 
Joseph and \Villi am to Gibson Co .. near Princeton. 

Robert Gourley. nephe,Y of ahoYe mentioned :\Ir. Gourley, and cousin of mv 
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grandfather, lived in Bloomington, Ind. l\Iy mother thinks his wife·s name was 
l\IcKissick. He had two sons, one, Hamilton. died unmarried. The other, William, 
n1arried :Margaret Haroison. One daughter. Sarah, married Joseph Frost; the other, 
Rachel, was married but do not know to whom. 

Thomas Gourley, brother of the above named Robert, went from Monroe Co., 
Ind., to Princeton, Ind. We know nothing of his family. During the Civil War 
he was called "Abolition" Tom. 

In writing of my grandfather, Thomas Gourley. I omitted such dates -as I 
knew. He ,vas born in Chester District. I think, in South Carolina, in 1814; was 
married there to l\Iargaret \,Vylie, abont 1833, and died in Logan Co., Ill., in 1881. 

These dates may be of no use to you unless in the placing of those of. the 
same name, and there seems a number of such. 

There may be mistakes in what I have written, as we have· no records. but 
1ny mother is sure about most of the names. I will write immediately to an aunt, 
older than my mother, ,vho may remember their grandfather's name. If I can 
he of any service to you ag-ain. please do not hesitate to write me. 

Thomas Gourley married a :Miss '\-Vilson. 

( l). Robert. 
(2). Thomas married :Margaret \Vylie. 

1. Marv E. married John K. Gaither. 
1. Perry. 
2. T. Pressley. 
3. Frank. 
4. Tobe. 
5. Jay. 

2. Nancy. 
3. Lillie A. married Samuel Guy. 

4. 

5. 

1. Annie. 
2. Reuben married 1dary Beck. 
3. Samuel 1\I. married Hester Ewing. 

1. Earl. 
2. William. 

Lillie A. Gourley also married John Sutphin. 
1. William. 
2. Alvia. 
3. :Margaret A. 
4. John T. 
5. :Montague. 
6. Lillie L., married B. l\I. Seal. 

1. Alberta B. 
l\Iargaret R.. married Andrew D. Gra,·. 
1. 1-Iinnie L., married Chas. R. Kirk.· 
? Lilian G .. married Chas. E. Howard. 
3. Edgar E., married l\Iinnie Soper. 

1. l\largarct Annis. 
VV~ right. 
Sarah L. 

Thomas Gourley again married Elizabeth Daniels. 
1. ::.\Iartha J. 
2. John P. 
3. Agnes. 
4. Sarah A. 
5. William. 

( 3). Joseph ( married twice. hut do not kno"· either name). 
1. :Martha, married Thomas Bugg. 
2. :Mary, married Cyrus l\Iartin. 
3. Louisa. 
4. ::Margaret. 
5. Thomas. 

Secon<l 111arnage. 
1. Susan. 



( 4). \Villiam, married 1Iargaret. 
1. John. 
2. Thomas. 
3. 
4. \Villiam. 

(5). Hugh. 
(6). Xancy, married 1Ir. Hindman (?) of ---\labama. 

S---\2\IUEL B. GOURLEY. 
The following account of Samuel Gourley·s family has been furnished by 

Sann1el B. Gourley of Chicago, Illinois, a descendant of said Samuel Gourley. 
After n1aking a careful investigation as to this Samuel Gourley·s family 

and the Samuel Gourley·s family ,vhich is fully set forth in this book, I am 
satisfied that the two Samuel Gourley~ were very nearly related in Scot­
land; the dates of birth of both occurred about the san1e time; they are prob­
ably related no further distant than first cousins. X either one of these Sa1nuel 
Gourley's ancestor's name can be given. 

This is my conclusion after careful investigation. C. T. H. 

Sa111uel Gourley was born at 1Iull of Glass, Scotland, about 1755. 
Lady }Iargaret DtJnn was horn at Bainhrjdge,· County Down, Ireland,. 

abont 1760. 
Samuel Gourley and Lady ~Iargaret Dunn were n1arried at Bainbridge, 

Ireland. about 1780, e1nigrated to America in 1801. settled at Sarahsville, Bel­
mont Co.. Ohio, where Samuel died Oct. 23, 1818, and Lady lv!argaret, his. 
wife. :\larch 29, 1821. 

James Gourley, son of Samuel and Lady ~Iargaret, ,vas born at St. 
Clairsville. Beln1ont Co., Ohio, June 16, 1804. 

E111ilinc :Mayhew was horn at St. Clairsville, Ohio, Aug. 13, 1817. 
J an1es Gourley and En1eline }Iayhew were married in their native place,. 

Aug. 10~ 1847. 
There were born to the111 at :\Iorristown, Beln1ont County, Ohio, six 

children. to-wit: 
Joh~, William, July 31, 1848: Sarah Agnes, Dec. 5, 1850; Anna Rebecca,. 

Feb. 4, 1852: Jan1es Artemus, March 22, 1853; Thomas Woodruff, Nov. 8, 1854; 
Edwin Rtifus. Sept. 19, 1856. 

In the year 1857, they removtd to =.\Iarshalltown, ~VIarshall County, Io"va, 
where another son nan1ed Samuel Birch, was horn Feb. 24, 1859, and where 
both James and Emeline died. Ja1nes~ Jan. 17. 1888: Emiline, Dec. 21, 1867. 

Their eldest son, John William, also died at 1Iarshalltown, :May 5, 1868, 
and their son, Edwin Rufus, at Gifford, Harden County~ Sept. 29, 1883. 

Harvey Wellington Lounsberry was born at Lexington, Richland County. 
Ohio. :March 14, 1844. He and Sarah Agnes Gourley, daughter of James and 
Emeline Gourley, ,vere 1narried at :\Iarshalltown. I o,va, X ov. 22, 1871. 

Children were ,born to them as follows. at Union. Hardin Countv. Iowa: 
Cecil Claude, .-\.ug. 30, 1872: Harold Claire; June 14, ·1874. At Alhio1~. :Mar­
shall County, Iowa: James Clyde, Sept. 2, 1876, died Dec. 17, 1881. -.\n<l at 
1-Iarshalltown. Iowa: "iVIable :Maude, Sept. 17, 1878. died June 27, 1883; Carl 
\Villiam, }lay 18, 1883: Iva Anna, June 29, 1885: Chancel Ray, April 2, 1888: 
Vance Earl. Aug. 24, 1890: Forrest Xorn1an, Jan. lK 1894, <lied April 22, 1903. 

Harriet Ellen Isha1n was born --. 
Cecil Claude Lounsberry, son of 1-Ian-ey vV. and Sarah Agnes. and Har-

riet Ellen I shan1 ·were 1narried at Cedar Rapids, T owa, Sept. 20, 1899. 
Cecil Isha1n Lounsberry, son of Cecil and Harriet, was born Sept. 9, 1900. 
Leon Claude born Jan. lR 1903, and died Jan. 8, 1904. 
Charles Benson Slocumb was born at Phillipstown, IlL Oct. 31, 1843. 
}Ion. Charles B. Slocumb and Anna Rebecca Gourley were 111arried at 

Eldora. Hardin County, Iowa, Jan. 22, 1874. 
Florence Ethel. daughter of Hon. C: B. and Anna R. Slocumb, was born 

at Fairbury. Jefferson County, Nebraska, Sept. 11, 1876. 
).Iinnie Y~ ocu1n was born at Bushnell, Ill., Jan. 9, 1869. 
Ja1nes Artemus Gourley and ~Iinnie Yocum were married at Atwood,. 

Kansas, J nly 8, 1890. 
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Cyr. D .. son of Ja1ncs .. :\. and ~Iinnie Gourley~ ,vas born at Denver, Colo., 
July 28, 1891. 

:Maude ~layhe,,· was born at Xewton, Jasper County, Iowa, Nov. 25~ 1866. 
Thomas vVoodrnff Gonrley and 3Iaude l\layhew ·were married at Denver, 

Colo., X OY. 14. 1894. 

JOSEPH GOURLEY .. 

l\Ir. C. T. Heydecker, 

\~Taukegan. 111. 

Dear Sir: 

11attoon, Ill., July .1, 1904. 

Have been inforn1ed by l\I r. Gourley ot Springtield, lll., that you are 
getting up a family tree of the Gourley family. I should like to hear from 
_you and ,vhat bunch of the family you belong to. 

l\Iy father's name was James R. Gourley, his father·s name was Joseph 
Gourley. James R. Gourley has a sister living in l\Iilroy. :Mrs. Sallie l\IcNutt; 
the above are all dead except ~Irs. Sallie l\IcNutt. ~ly grandfather came 
from Scotland. 

If you ha,·e any hooks out in regard to the fa111ily let me know. 
Very truly yours, 

JOHN T. R. GOURLEY. 

John Thon1as Robert Gourley, the only child of James R. Gourley and 
l\Iary Jane Gourley, ,vas born at Shirley. Illinois, January 25. 1858. vVhen 
about six n1onths old, his mother died. On August 20; 1862, his father was 
n1ustered into Compariy I, of the 94th Regiment of the Illinois Volunteers 
at Bloomington, Illinois. Then after a forced march of one hundred and 
hventy n1iles in three and a half days, he took part in a battle of Prairie 
Grove, Ark., December 7, 1862. He also took part in the raid over Boston 
1Iountains in Van Buren. Ark.. and a portion of the company engaged in the 
repulse of l\Iarmaduke at Springleld, l\rio., Jan. 8, 1863, and near this place 
it is supposed he took sick with fever and died. I was put in a family 
by the name of John l\IcNitt after the death of my mother .. 

At the age of about six years, I was taken to_ Logansport, Ind., and placed 
in the family of my uncle, Robert G. l\1cNitt, a brother of my mother. 
After his death, another brother. C. 1\1. l\IcNitt, took me and raised me 
until I was twenty-one years of age. Both of the above were my guardians. 
l\-Iy grandfather, who came to this country from Scotland, was na1ned 
Joseph Gourley c1nd my grandn1other, who can1e fro1n Ireland, was l\Iargaret 
~IcXitt. and both located on a farn1 near 11ilroy, Pa. They had hvo chil­
dren, Ja1nes R. Gourley. n1y father, and l\'lrs. Sallie :YicNitt, who is still 
living in 1Iilroy, Pa. On :March 1st, at the age of twenty-three, I bought 
one-third interest in the saddlery firm of C. l\1. l\IcNitt, at Longansport, Ind., 
and remained in business with· him about five years, and then my health 
failing me, I was co1npelled to seek out-door employment. I left · Logans­
port, Sept. L 188i, for Terre ·Haute, Indiana, and traveled for Froeb Bros., 
representing. the1n on the road for five years in the saddlery hardware busi­
ness. On Dec. 12, 1892. I left the above firm and went with J. 0. Fleckner & 
Son. of Evansville, Ind .. and re1nained with then1 four years. Then finding 
1ny health much improved in the nine years I ,vas on the road. I again went 
into business• for myself at :Mattoon, Illinois, on Dec. 18, 1896, where I am 
engaged at the present time, Aug. 15, 1905, in the 1nanufacture of saddlery 
and harness. 

J. T. R. GOURLEY. 

GEORGE GOURLEY. 
Frostburg, Pa., Jan. 22, 1906. 

l\Ir. C. T. Heydecker: 
Your letter handed to me for reply, would say we have a Gourley re­

union here every year, and they turn out like flies around a sugar barrel in fly 



time. If any Gourleys in your section give n1e their nan1es I will send then1 
invitations to our reunion for next summer. 

I would like to know the object of your ·wanting records. I live on n1:r 
grandfather's farm. which was among the first settled, he first built a log 
cabin, some time after built a plank house in 1845, which is very good yet and 
I am living in same. 

E. C. GOURLEY. 

It is thought that George Gourley and Samuel Gourley, who came to 
America about 1784. were brothers. The location of their settlement in Penn­
sylvania would lead to that conclusion. The following article on the George 
Gourley's family record }fas been furnished by :Miss :\Iary B. Crawford of 
Smickburg, Pa. · 

GOURLEY AXCESTRY. 

George Gourley was born in li69~ in Ireland, probably in Loi1donderry, 
and in 1816 he came to America, and after deciding upon a desirable location 
in X ova Scotia, he sent for his wife, Rosannah l\icN eal, who came bringing 
their six children. They then removed to Sinking Valley, Blair County, Penn­
sylvania, where Mr. Gourley worked as a blacksmith and gave evidence of 
superior skill in his chosen work. Later he purchased a large farm in In­
diana County, where his growing boys found employment in clearing the 
forest and tilling the soil as well as assisting their father in the smithery. It 
was true of them as of most early settlers-life was fraught with many hard­
ships-luxuries were few, but devotion to duty developed noble character, 
possessing a sturdiness almost u_nknown to one born to ease. 

l\,fr. Gourley was one wh0 enjoyed having things about him conveniently 
and neatly arranged and did much which contributed to the comforts of his 
home; moreover he was of a practical turn of mind, and on one occasion his 
attention was called to a flower bed, he replied: "I would rather see a good 
hill of paratus (potatoes). 

l\Irs. Gourley, nee Rosannah l\IcK eal. ,vas a most remarkable won1an in 
many respects. She possessed a very amiable disposition, was a faithful wife, a 
devoted mother c!nd a friend to all who knew her, very industrious in her 
habits, which is illustrated by this: During the harvest time she and her 
daughters assisted in the fields and at the noon hour while the men rested, 
the girls cleared the table and set the house in order and she sat down to 
her spinning wheel and busied herself 1naking preparations for protection 
against the next winter's cold. In after years her O\Vn enfeebled body see1ned 
to be a result of her life of OYerwork. 

This couple being stanch Presbyterians and devout worshippers of God, 
were ahvays observant of time for fan1ily prayers and on Sabbath rode on 
horseback to Perry Presbyterian church. a distance of eight miles away. 

Their children all embraced the faith of their parents. The sons all be­
came successful farmers and mechanics. Three of the daughters n1arrie<l 
fanners and one an expert tailor. Their children's children numbering about 
sixty-five. excepting a f e\v hav_e ahvays resided in western Pennsyh·ania~ in the 
farming district. As a people they are kind hearted, given to hospitalityr indus­
trious. yet find great enjoyment in recreation. Talented in 111usic and manv of 
the1n ·enjoy dancing. or at least a nmnher of them participated in the am~1se-
ment at the .-\nnual Reunion of the Gourley:-.. held in 1904. ·· 

Oi the fourth generation about one hundred and twenty-five are living: 
among them are found five who have chosen the medical profession, six whose 
husbands attach the ?\I. D. to their signature. one professional nurse. one 
iawyer, one the wife of a Presbyterian minister, another of a civil engineeL 
one of an inventor, one a- minister of the gospel, half a dozen tradesmen, one 
telegraph operator and a nun1ber of laborers, teachers, students, business men 
and farmers. 

Of the fifth generation there are living· approximately one hundred and 
t\venty-five, among whom are found teachers, seamstresses, students and a 
number skilled in don1estic science and at least three have shown a willingness 
to continue in this line~ as they have hegun ··housekeeping just for two/' and 
two rnembers of the sixth generation ,vere here to ,velcome the year 1906. 
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George Gourley, born 1769, <lied Sept. 6, 1853; Rosannah }IcXeal, born 
--, died Sept. 9, 1853. 

Their chilc;lren: Thomas. born Oct. 2R 1805: J oh11, born May 19, 1808, died 
:May, 1891; *James, born Aug. 23, 1810, died l\Iarch 21, 1867; :Margaret, born 
Jan. 24, 1812; Alexander, born June 4, 1814; George, born March 17, 1816, died 
Jan. 23, 1846; Rosanna, born :March 12, 1819: Armstrong, born Sept. 15, 1820: 
Robert, born ~lay 27, 1822; X ancy, born Nov. 23, 1823; Mary Ann, born Sept. 
18, 1826. 

*James Gourh,y, born Aug. 23. 1810, died :March 2L 1867; :Margaret Young 
Travis, born Dec. 7, 1818, died Jan. 1, 1889. · 

Their children: Lousia Barrett, born Feb. 16, 1837, died Sept. 23. 1857; 
l\Iary Rosannah, born Jan. 27, 1841: l\iargaret Ann, born 11ay 5, .1843; died Aug. 
25. 1882; Joseph Travis, born July 7, 1845: John :McXeal, born Aug. 3, 1847: 
William Simms, born Nov. 5. 1850, died Sept. 18, 1853. 

JOHN NL GOURLEY. 

John 1\1. Gourley, a descendant of Geo. Gourley, was born in Indiana Co .. 
Pa., 1847. He had one sister, :Mary Crawford, and one brother, Joseph Gourley, 
both of whom are living. John l\1. Gourley moved from Indiana Co., Pa .. to 
Paxton, Ill., in 1870. He was married in 1873 to :Mary Lantz, and to then1 
seven children were born-William G., Frederick L., James, ·Mary, l\Iargaret, 
Joseph and Blanche. All are living except Blanche, who died in her infancy. 
They still reside on a farm near Paxton, Ill. 

Wm. G. was 111arried in 1898 to Edith Parker: to then1 three chil<lren. 
Leonard, Orin and Cecil, were born. Frederick L. was married to l\fargaret 
l\1aclnnis, 1904, and now is a physician in Waukegan, Ill. Joseph Gourley, 
brother of John l\f., was married to Jennie Doak, 1871. to them three children 
were born, 1Iay, Emma and Preston. Preston died in infancy, May died at the 
age of twenty-six years, En1ma is still living, married to Weightman Smith, and: 
lives with her father in Evans, Colo. 

Thomas Gourley was second lieutenant, 2nd Battalion. Pennsylvania Rifles; 
and was promoted to captain. Address not kno,vn. This information ·was 
found in a war history of Pennsylvania. 

Account of Gourley Reunion as published in the Punxsutawney (Pa.) 
Spirit, of August 13, 1908: 

GOURLEY FA:\IILY HOLDS ITS SIXTH ..-\X~UAL CELEBRATIOX, 

AUGUST 12, 1908. 

150 Friends and Relatives Attended-Doctors Galore-Baseball Ga1ne was the 

Big Feature of the Day. 

The happy, ,vell-fed, baseball-loving Gourleys, to the number of 150~ in­
cluding many friends, yesterday congregated at Jefferson Park ancl spent the 
day, the occasion being the sixth annual reunion of the family. 

It was high noon before the enrolhnent \Vas co111plete, but the clans were 
not long in distributing themselves at the various tables. There ,vere prac­
tically four banquets going on. all at the same tin1e. but the Gourley women. 
who are famous throughout this section as culinary artists, ,vere equal to the 
occasion. They not only had enough on hand to supply the reunionists for 
dinner, but they had an abundance left over for supper and at lei.st three­
fourths of those present remained for the evening event. I-low many courses 
the menu card contained nobody stopped to figure out, but there was a-plenty. 

The Gourley family includes a large sprinkling of 1\1. D.'s and hence they 
take great liberties with capacity. Yesterday there were included in the bunch 
seven physicians, namely: Harry and Ru~sell C. Gourley, W. F. and ~Ieig~ 
Beyer, John A. and Clark Newcome and Dr. S. S. Hainilton, and there are 
several l\L D.'s in the connection who were unable to be present. 

The elders cf the reuning family were all present, including James A .. 
Gourley, of Big Run; Crawford and John A. Gourley and 1Irs. Jacob Grube, 
of Punxsutawney. 
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RelatiYes fro111 a distance present were: l\Ir. an<l ).!rs. A. C. lVIcClungi 
of ::\Iason. 0.: Dr. and l\Irs. John X e\vcome and family~ of Sigeli and ~'Irs. 
Dr. \Y. H. Gilmore. of }It. Vernon~ Ill. 

Guests from out of town were Re\·. and ).Irs. CoulteL of Big Run, and 
Rev. A. C. Po,Yell. of }Iarion Center. 

Aside fron1 the noon and evening banquets the annual ball gan1e \Vas the 
feature. 

Lex X. l\Iitchell and Syl Gourley were selected to pick up sides; l\Iitchell 
·won the toss for first bats~ but Gourley won the game~ 22 to 18. 

The teams lined up as follows: 
Dr. Clark K ewcome. p: ::\Ieiggs Beyec c; Jacob Grube~ s; Dr. Russell 

Gourley~ 1st; Daniel Gourley~ 2nd: Dr. Harry Gourley~ 3rd: Syl Gourley, r; 
.Aubrey l\IcHenry, 1n; Charles Veil~ 1: \Valter Veil, sub catcher; score 22. 

Lex :Mitchell's team-Dr. John :Newcome, .p; Lewis Grube, c: l\Iitchelli 1st; 
George Gourley, 2nd; Dr. \V. F. Beyec 3rd: A. C. l\IcClung~ r: David Gourley, 
1n; J. ]. Hamilton, s; James Gourley. 1; score 18. 

U mpire-Ty~on; official scorer-Dr. S. S. Hamilton. 
The game began imn1ediately after dinner and "vas concluded some time 

before midnight. The number of innings played is very much in doubt. The 
official scorer's data was kept on wooden pie plates. one plate for each in­
ning and as some of them were used to pass pies around during the intervals 
between innings, they were taken into the system, inadvertently. 

There were no stomach pumps in the crowd and hence the rcords will 
probably be lost. It was generally conceded that the game went somewhere 
between 50 and 60 innings. 

Until a couple more pages are added to the paper it will be impossible 
to print the tabulated score in a single issue. 

Features of the gamei besides the battery work. were Syl Gourley's 
even dozen home runs, the base stealing stunts pulled off by Dr. vV. F. Beyer, 
Dave Gourley's long sprint and capture of a foul ( off the table). 

Crawford Gourley and Adam :Miller \VOn the honors at quoits, their prizes 
being a hunch of 1emons and a good luck trophy in the shape of a n1ule shoe. 
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